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AO 2117 (Rav. 0170) 

DEFENDANT INFORMATION RELATIVE TO A CRIMINAL ACTION· IN U.S. DISTRICT COURT 

BY: 0 COMPLAINT 0 INFORMATION IRJ INDICTMENT 

(8] SUPERSEDING 
~--OFFENSE CHARGED -------'-----'-''----'----

21 U.S.C. § 841 (a)(f) (db.trlbutlon of .to11trotletl substances) 
{Counts 1·40l; 18 u.s.c. § 1349 (r;ens-pitl'.lcy w ~ontmlt 
hetllth cataCraud) (Count 41); Ill U.S.(,§ 1.347 (health i::ire 
fl'aµd) (Counts 4Z·47l 

PENAL TY: S.ea Attnchment A 

O Patty 

O Minor 

D Misde­
meanor-

(8] Felony 

Name of District Court, and/Or Judga!Maglslrale l.ocallon --~ 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

OAKLAND DIVISION 

DEFENDANT ·U.S -------------

• DAVID LAGUE 

DISTRICT COURT NUMBER 

17-00150 HSG 

DEFENDANT 

PROCeEDING t ri s•)Ol'l~utll NOrlN CUSTODY 
GI.lei>' ' 0\;/\ ,;Cl ~~11\i\\ not been arrested, pending outcome this pmcaedlng. 

Name or Complalntant Age110y, or Person (& ntle, if any) c~tl'..~; i~ .111c1 ot1,·u If no! dolalned give date any prior 

DEA ·no~\\\tl'i•1 summons was served on above charges •-----

D 
parson Is awaiting trial In another Federal or State Court, 
give name of court 

n this person/proceeding Is transf•rr•d from another district 
u,_.i per (circle one) FRCrp20, 21. or 40. Show DlstrtC\ 

this Is a reprosecution of 
charges previously dismissed 

D which were dismissed on motion 
of: 

D U.S.ATTORNEY D OiiF~NSE 

this prosecution relates to a 
181 pending case Involving this same 

defendant 

prior proceedings or eppearance(s) 
181 before U_S, Magistrate regarding this 

defendant were recorded under 

Name and Offlco of Person 

SHOW 

LOCKET NO. 

MAGISTRATE 
CASE NO, 

} 17-70338 

Furnishing !llformalloo on U1is form Brian J, Stretch 

Name of Assistant U.S. 
Atlolnay {IF assigned) 

IBJ U.S. Attorney O Other U.S. Agency 

Rita F. Lin 

2.) O Is a Fugitive 

3) lg] Is on Bail or Release fmm (show District) 

Northern District of California 

IS IN CUSTODY 

4) D On this charge 

5) D On another conviction } 
D Federal D Stata 

6) O Awaiting ·trial on other charges 

If answer· to (G) Is "Yes", shaw name of institulion 

Has detainer D Yes 
bean ~led? D No 

DATEOF • 
ARRE$T 

If "Yes'' 
} givedate 

filed ------· 
Moritil/Day/Y ear 

Or ... if Auesling A_gencf& WarHlrtl wer.e nol 

DATE TRANSFERRED • 
TO U.S. CUSTODY 

Month/Day/Yaor 

O This report amends AO 257 previously subm[tlect 

------------ ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR COMMENTS ---· ----------
PROCESS: 

D SUMMONS ~ NO PROCE.SS' D WARFlANT 

If Summons, complete following: 
O Arraignment [J Initial Appearance 

Oefondant Address: ____ ,, _______________ _ 
Comments: 

BaH Amount: -----
"' Where def~ndant prevfousJy apprehundod on compfafnt, 110 naw smnmans: or 
warrant naedl!ld, $111\.tj Magislra.to ltas sclledulet;J armigmnent 

Datemme: Before Judge: -------- ________ , 
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Counts 1-23 
and 25-38 

Count 24, 39, 
and 40 

Cc,iunt41 

Counts42-47 

Attllchment A 
Superseding Indictment 

United Smtes v. Dnvld Lague 

21 U.S.C. §§ 84l(a)(I) and 841(b)(l)(C)-Distrib1rtion·ofSchedule II 
Contro!led Substances 

21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(l) and 841 (b)(2)- Distrlbntio11 of Schedule IV 
ControUed Substances 

18 U.S.C. § 1349- Conspiracy l1' Commit Health Care l<raud 

18 U.S.C. § 1347 -Health Care Fraud 

Counts 1-23 and 25-38: For each cooot, Maximum 20 Years Imprisonment; Maximum Fine of 
$1,000,000 or twice the gain or lollS; Min:irmun Supervised Release of 3 Years; Ma1'inmm 
Supervisw Release of Life; Mandatory $100 Spei:iialAssesmnent: Potential Deportation; 
Forfeiture; Mandatory and Dlscreti.911ary Denial ofFederal Benefits. 

Count 24, 39, and 40: For each count, Maximum 5 Years Imprisonment; Maximum Fine of 
$250,000 or twice tbe gain or loss; Minimum l Year Supervised Release;. Maximum Supervised 
Release of Life; Mandatory SHOO Special Assessment; Potential Deportation; Forfeiture; 
Mandatory !llld Discretfonary Denial of Federal Benefits. 

Counts 41 .47: For each count, Maxim.um 10 Years Imprisonment; Maximmn Fine of $250;000 
o:rtwice the gain or loss; Maximum Supervised Release of3 Years; Mandat01y$100 Special 
Assessment; P9tentinl Deportation; Forfeiture; Restitution. 
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mtntteb ~tatess 119t~ttict <tottrt 
FOR THE 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

VENUE; OAKLAND 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

v. 

DAVtD LAGUE 

DEFENDANT(S). 

Flt.ED 

SECOND SUPERSED.ING INDICTMENT 

Counts 1-23 and 25-38: 2fu.s.c. §§ 841(a)(1) and 84'l(b)(1)(C)­
DistribLJtion of Scl1edule II Controlled Substances: Counts 24, 39, 

and 40: 2·1 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1) and 841(b)(2)-Distrlbutlon of 
Schedule IV Controlled Substances: Count41: 18 U.S.C. § 1349 -
Conspiracy to Commit Health Care Fraud; Counts 42-47: 18 U.S.C. 

§ 1347 - Health Care Fraud 

. i 
I 
I 
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BRIAN J, STRETCH (CABN 163973) 
United States Attorney FlL.EO 

l)EC o ~1 '/.011 
y SOONG\ 

SUSANDlSiRicr COURT 
ClER~. 00·1S;Tl1JC1 Of CAl.lfORNIA 

NORTtiERN ° . t. 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

OAKLAND DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

) NO. CR 17-00l50HSG 
) 

14 v. 

) 
) 
) 
) 

VIOLATIONS:21 U.S.C. §841-Distributionofa 
Controlled Substance; 18 U.S.C. § 1349 -
Cons11iracy to Commit Health Care Fraud; 18 U.S.C. 
§ 1347 - Heath Care Fraud; 18 U.S.C. § 982 and 21 
U.S.C. § 853 - Criminal Forfeiture Allegations 

DAVID LAOlIB, 

Defendant. 

l 
l 
l 

, ____ ) 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 SECOND SUPERSEDING lNDICTME'l:!.I 

20 The Grnnd Jmy charges: 

21 COUNTS ONE TI'Il't.OUGH l'lllili: 

22 

(21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(l) & 841(b)(l)(C)-Distributing 
Oxyco<lone OutsidlJ the Scope of Professional Practic!l) 

23 

24 

l. On or about the dates listed below, ill the Northern District ofCalifomia, the defendant 

DAVID LAGUE, 

25 a registrnnt authorized to dispense controlled substances, knowingly and intentionally clistributed a · 

26 mixture nnd stibstance contai'ning a detectable a.mount of oxycodone, a Schedule II controlled substance, 

27 to the following persons, knowing and intending that the distribution was outside the sco1ie of 

28 p1·ofesskmal practice and not for a legitimate medical purpose: 

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT 1 
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-
) .0:': > .:d<?UfIT ., :~,AT!l; < . ' ... 'i!t~~~: ,)'. . '·; .. :. ·' .. . ~-. 

1 10/13/2016 S.L. 

2 1211212016 SL. 
-- ~ 

3 1/6/2015 D.L 

4 10/25/2016 DJ,. 
.. 

s 11129/2016 D.L. -
6 6/18/2015 K.O. 

-

7 9/19/2016 K.O. 

8 12/1812014 (two 
prescriptions) 

J.P. 

-
9 121112015 (eight 

prescriptions) 
J.P. 

·~ --

13 Eaclt in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sectio1w 841 (11)(1) and (b)(l)(C). 

14 

15 COUNTS TEN THROUGH IWELVE: 

16 

(21 U.S.C. §§ 841 (a)O) & 841 (b)(l)(C)-Distl'ibuting 
Oxymorphmre Outsfde the Soope of Professional Practice) 

17 

lll 

On or about the dates listed below, ill the Northern District of California, the def'endimt 

DAVID LAGUE, 

19 11 registrant authorized to dispense controlled s•.ibs!llilCl'!S, knowingly and intentionally distributed a 

20 1llixture and substllllce containing a detectable amount of oxymorphone, a Schedule U controlled 

21 substance, to the following persons, knowing and Intending that the dLqtrib11tion W!lll ot1tside the scope of 

22 professional practice and not for a legitimate medical purpose: 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

. ..-., __ ~ couf.JT ,. · · , n.An:;;r · " · ;titi'ir.1¥ ,r ·.: 
-,~· --------+---- ___ ,.........._.;;...·,,_ -----+~-·,..._;,;..:,.,,~"' ... ~· ..... 

10 1/6/2015 D.L. 
·--~-~~-~-r---~-

11 10125/16 D.L. 

12 11/2912016 D.L. 
-·-------"-~----------''----·------' 

SUf>ERSBDINO INDICTMENT 2 
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1 Each in violationofTitle21, United States Code, Section.~ 841(a)(l) and(b)(l)(C). 

2 

4 

5 

6 

3. 

(21 U.S.C. §§ 84l(a)(J) & 841(b)(l)(C)­
.Dlstributing Methadone Outside the Scope of 
Professional Practice} 

On or about the dates listed below, in the Northern District of California, the defendant 

DAVID LAGUE, 

7 a registrant authorized to dispense controlled substances, knowingly and intentionally distributed a 

8 mixture and substance containing a detectable amount ofrnethadonl',, a Schedule Il controlled substance, 

9 to the following persons, knowing and intending that the distribution was outside the scope of 

IO professional practice and not for a legitimate tni::dical purpose: 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

·:,~:·t'ouNT i:\.~ _: ·:·· ': : .. ·.:· :~~1'.~.1· ;(·< · 
1--- . 

13 1/6/2.QlS D.L. 

14 10/25/2016 D.L, 

IS 1112912016 D.L. 

17 3/2/2015 M.C.M. 
·~~~----r--~~-~ ·-----t---~-~-~~-

13 Sl&/'4015 M.C.M. 
i--~---~~~~+--~~~· ----t------~~~--l 

19 11812016 .M.C.M. 

20 9/19/16 K.O, 
-·--------~---------·-"----

20 Each in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Seotions 841(a)(l) and (b)(l)(C). 

21 

22 ~QlJNT~~TY·ONE THROUGH TWENTY·THREE: 

23 

24 

(21 U.S.C. §§ 84l(a)(l) & 
84l(b)(l)(C)-Distl'ihuting . 
Amphetamine Outside the Scope of 
Professional Practice) 

25 

26 

4. On or about the dates listed below, in the Northern District of California, the defendant 

DAVID LAGUE, 

27 a registrant authorized to dispense controlled substances, .knowingly and intentionally distributed a 

21l mbcture and substance co11taini11g a detectable amount of amphetrunine, a Schedule U co11trolled 

SUPERSBDING INDICTMBNT 3 
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l substance, to the following persons, !mowing and intending that the distribution was outside the scope of 

2 professional practice and not for a legitimate medical purpose: 

4 

5 

6 

7 

21 

22 

23 

116/2015 D.L. 

10/25/16 D.L. 

11/29/16 D.L. 

8 Each In violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sectio11s 841(a)(l) and (b)(l)(C). 

9 

l 0 CO!JNT TWBNIY·FOUR: (21 U.S.C. ~§ 84 l(a)(l) & &41 (b)(2) -Dlstrlbut!ng Clonazepam Outside. 
the Scope of Professional Practice} 

11 

12 

13 

s. On or about October 6, 2016, in the Nortlwrn District of California, the defendant 

DAVID LAGUE, 

14 a registmnt authorized to dispense controlled substances., knowingly and intentionally d'istribuied a 

l 5 mixture 11nd substance containing a detectable amount of clona.zepam, a Schedule IV controlled 

16 substance, to D.L., knowing and fntencling that the dlslribution was outside the scope of professional 

17 practice ruid not for a legitimate medical purpose, in violation of Title 21, United State,~ Code, Sections 

18 1!4l(a)(l), (b)(2). 

19 

20 .QQ.UlitS..TWENTY·FIYEIHR.QUQJITilIRTX: (21 U.S.C. §§ lMl(a)(l) & 84!(b)(1.)(C)­
Disllibuting I•entanyl Out.~ide the Scope of 

21 Professional Practice) 

22 

23 

24 

6. On or about the dates !fated below, hi the Northern Dfatriot of Califomia, the defendant 

DAVID LAGUE, 

a registrant authorized to dispense controlled substances, kn.owingly and intentionally distributed a 
25 

·mixture and substance containing a detectable amount of fentanyl, a Schedule II controlled substance, to 
26 

the following persons, knowing aud Intending that the distribution was outside the scope of pl'Ofes.~ional 
27 

practice and not for a legitimate medical purpose: 
28 

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT 4 
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. ' 
: ,C()UNT 

' 
DATE 

: ... . . - . 

25 2123/2015 Fentanyl (160() mcg) ISO 
·-

26 5/112015 lFentanyl ( 400 mcg} 60 

27 5/8/2015 Fentanyl (800 mcg) 60 

28 512612015 Fentanyl (400 mcg) 60 

29 117/2016 Fentanyl (800 mcg) 128 

30 117/2016 Fentanyl (800 mcg) 90 --

M.C.M. 

M.C.M. 

M.C.M. 

M.C.M. 

M.C.M. 

M.C.M. 

9 Each in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 84l(a)(l) iind {b)(l)(C). 

10 

ll COUNTS THIRTX-ONETHRQQQHIHIBIY·IHREE: (21 U.S.C.§§ lf4!(a)(I)& 841(b)(1)(C)­
Distributing Hydromorphone Outside the 

12 

13 

14 

. · Scope of Professional Practice) 

7. Ou or about the dates listed below, in the Northem District of California, the defendant 

DA VlD LAGUE, 

1$ a registrant authorized to dispense controlled substances, knowingly and intentionally distributed a 

16 mixture and substance containing a detectabfo runo1111t ofhydromoi:phone, a Schedule U controlled 

17 subslance, to the following persons, knowing and intending that the distribution was outside the $Cope of 

18 professional practice and not for a legitimate medical purpose: 

31 3/2/2015 M.C.M. 

.19 

20 

21 

22 

~ ........ ---------·~-------+---·------i 
32 51812015 M.C.M. 

l'-----------~·i-----~~·- ------l 
33 118/2016 M.C.M. 

23 

24 Each ln violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 84l(a)(l )and (b)(l)(C). 

25 

26 QPJiNJS J.]jJRTY-FOURlli&Q!JGH THIRTY·§IJI;: 

27 

(21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(l) & 84l(b)(l)(C)·~ 
Distributing Morphine Outside the Scope of 
Professionru Practice) 

28 8. On or about the dates listed below, ilt the Northern District of California, the defendant 

SUPERSEDING INDICTMf>NT s 
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DAVID LAGUE, 

a registrant autho 

mixture and subs 

to the following . 

rized to dispense controlled substances, knowingly and intentionally distributed a 

tance containing a detectable amoimt of morphine, a Schedule 11 controlled substance, 

persons, knowing and intending that tho distribution was outside the scope of 

professional prac tice and not for a legitimate medioal purpose: 
~~--~-~:~--.,..-~~.-,.,.-,.~-..,.---.,,~-:.r ... ~~-,-~------....,.~~ 
COUNT · .. · '· DATif .. ;:.; . . ':;. ... CLlE ... Nt.:" .. '. . 
.;...;,_' ~···~···.~·~·---'--t-''--'-""~~·~·~·~·~·~·~·--~-'--'--!--'-~'-"-•--·~·~-~"~···----1 

F.Aich in violation 

34 

35 

36 

31212015 M.C.M. 

5/8/2015 M.C.M. 
--------+----------------! 

l/812016 M.C.M. 

of'fitl.e 21, United States Code, Sectiom 841(a)(l), (b)(l)(C). 

COUNTf:'LllUE TY·SEVENandTR!BlY·EIO~T: (21 U.S.C. §.§ 841(a)(l) & 841(b)(l)(C)·-
. Dih'tributing Iiydrocodone Outsidr.i the Sc<:>pe of 

P1-ofessional 'Practice) 

9. 0 nor about the dates listed below; in the Northern District of Califotnia, the defendant 

DAVID l.AOUE, 

orized to di~pense controJled substances, knowingly and intentionally distributed a a registrant auth 

mixtul'e and subs 

$ubstance, to the 

tance containing a detectable amount ofhydrocodone, a Schedule 11 controI!ed 

following persons, knowing and h1tending that the distribution was outside the scope of 

ct ice lllld not for a legitimate medical purpose: professional pra 
. 

"·''" .· 
.. . . ., . 
" .. ·.· .. ·-.· 

37 (.i/18/2015 K.O. 
~ ................ 

38 9/19/2016 K.O. 

Each in vio!atio n of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1), (b)(l}(C). 

II 

II 

II 

SUPERSEIDING lN OIC'fMENT 6 
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1 COUNT THIRTY ·N!Nfu 

2 

(21 U.S.C. §§ 84 l(a)(l) & 84 l(b)(2) -DistrlbutingAlprazolam Outside 
the Scope of P!'ofessional Practice) · 

3 10. On or abo11t September 19, 2016, in the Northern District ofCallfo.rnla, the defendant 

4 DAVID LAGUE, 

S a registrant authorized to. dispense controlled substances, knowingly and intentionally distributed a 

6 1ni:xtm·e and substance containing a detectable amount of alprazolam, a Schedule IV controlled 

7 substance, to K.O ., knowing and intending that the distribution WM outside the scope of professional 

ll ptactice tmd not for a legitimate medical pm'}lose, in violation of Title 21, United Stales Code, Sections 

9 841(a)(l) imd 841(b)(2). 

10 

11 CQUNT FORIY; 

12 

(21 U.S.C. §§ 84 ! (a)(l) & 84 l(h)(2) - Dfatributing Carisoprodol Outside the 
Scope of Professional Practice) 

! 3 11. On or about S~tember 19, 2016, in the Northeni District of Californi~ the defendant 

14 DAVID LAGUE, 

15 a registrant authorized to di&pi;mse controlled substances, knowingly and i11tentio11ally distributed a 

i6 mixture and substallee containing a detectable amount of carisoprodol, a Sehedule IV controlled 

17 substance, to K.O., knowing and intending that the distribution was outside the scope of professional 

18 practice and not for a legitimate medical purpose, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 

19 ll4l(a)(I) and 841(b)(2). 

20 

21 CQ.UNT FORTY.ONE: (18 U.S.C. § 1349-Conspiraey to Commit Health Care Fraud) 

22 12. The allegations of Pan1graphs 1 through ll ofthis Superseding Indic1n1ent are re.alleged 

23 and incorporated herein as if set forth fully here. 

24 l 3. At all times r"levant to this Superseding Indictment, DAVID LAGUE was a physician's 

25 assistant lice1i.~ed to practice in the Stirte of C.alifornia pursuant to a license issued by the Medical Board 

26 of California. LAGUE was a Drug Elifurcement Administration. registrant and was authorized to 

27 pte$cribe controlled substances In the usll!ll co\1tse of his professional practice. LAGUE was enrolled as 

28 a Medicare provider. 

SUPERSEDING JNDICTMENT 7 
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1 14. . The Medicare Program ("Medicare") was a federal program that provided free or below· 

2 cost health care benefits to certain individual$, primarily the elderly, blind, and disabll'ld. The benefits 

3 available under Medicare we1·e pre~cribed by statute and by federal regulations under the auspices of the 

4 United States Department of Health and Humru:t Services {"HHS''), through its agency, the Center for 

S Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS"). Individuals who received benefits under Medicare were 

6 commonly referred to as Medi.care "beneficiaries." 

7 15. The Medicare Part D Program C'Part D"), also known as Medicare Prescription Drug 

g Plan, covered the costs of prescription drugs and prescription drug insurance premlmns .for Medicare 

9 beneficiaries. Medicare beneficiaries enrolled in Part D were entitled to use their benefits to pay for an 
1 O o.r part of the cost of prescriptions. The Part D program was overseen by CMS, and Part !) Prescription 

11 Drug Plans were administered by private: companies (e.g., UnitedHealth Group, Blue Cross and Blue 

12 Shield, Wellpoint) that applied to CMS to participate in the Part D program. When approved, tl1ese 

13 private companies contracted with the Federal Govemment to be Part D sponsors and marketed Part D · 

14 drug plruis directly to Medicare benefl()iaries. 

15 16. Medicare was a "health care benefitprogram,"as defined byTltle 18, United States 

16 Code, Section 24(b), in that it was a pubf!c or ptlvate pl1111, affecting interstate commerce, under which 

17 medical benefits, items, and services we1·e provided to indlviduals. 

18 17. Beginning no late!' than in or about approximately March 17, 2014, and continuing 

19 tl1rough approximately December 31, 2016, in the Northern District of Califomia, LAGUE devised tmd 

20 intended to devise a $Cherne and artifice to defraud health care benefit prograrrJ:S in co1mectio11 wtth the 

21 delivery of and payment for health care benefits, items, and services, by knowingly submitti11g, and 

22 causing others to submit, false and fraudulent cl~ims for prescriptions ru:id fulse!y re1irese11ting that those 

23 prescr!ption11 were prescribed .in the usual course of pl'ofesslonal medical practice and for a legitimate 

24 medical purpose. 

25 18. LAGUE imd M.C.M. met at a doctor's office in San Leandro, Caiifomia, in order for 

26 LAOUE to deliver prescriptions to M.C.M. fur controlled substances, lncludi.ng substances containing · 

27 high doses of fentanyl, outside of the usual course of professional medical practice and without a 

28 

SUPF.RSEDJNG INOICTMENT 
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1 legitimate medical purpose. LA GUE knowingly wrote these prescriptions outside of the usual course of 

2 professional medical practice and without a legitimate medical pul'posa, 

3 19, M.C.M .. was a beneficiruy of health care benefit progrnms tllat were administered by 

4 Medic.are. As a beneficfozy, M.C.M. llad insurance coverage for pre.qcrfption medications. 

5 20. LAGUE knew that MC.M. was enrolled in a health care benefit program that paid for tile 

6 controlled sul>stances he prescribecl. LAGUE communicated with M.C.M.'s insurauce providers to 

7 facllitate payment of the controlled substances that he prescribed for M.C.M. LAGUE knew that 

8 M.C.M. intended to and did use insurance benefits to pay for the controlled sub;iances lie presl.llibed. 

9 LAGUE further klleW that the issuance of the p!'!lScriptions to M.C.M. for controlled substan.ces that 

1 O would be paid for by allealth care benefit program Wa3 outside of the usual course ofprofessional 

11 medical practice and wifuout a legitimate medical purpose. 

12 2 !. M.C.M, ptese.t,ted prescriptions for controlled substances prescribed by LAGUE at 

13 pharmacies, and used or attempted to use insurance coveragi;1 to pay for some or all of the controlled 

14 sub.'ltances. Claims for some of these prescriptions were submitted ta a health care benefit program for 

15 rehnbursemeut and payment. 

16 22. Between approximately March 17, 2014 and December 31, 2016, the Medicare Par! D 

17 Prescription Drns Plan paid approxin111tely $508,611.29 in false and fraudulent Medicare claims for 

18 fentanyl products that were prescribed by LAGUE to M.C.M. outside of the usual course of professional 

19 medical pmctice and without a legitimate medical purpose. 

20 23. Beginning on a date unknown to the Grand Jury,. but no later than in orabontMarch 17, 

21 2014, 1111d continuing th<ough approximately January 13, 2017, both dates being approximate and 

22 inclusive, in the Northern District of California, and elsewhere, the defendant 

23 DAVID LAGUE 

24 and others known !ll:ld unknown to the grand j:ui·y, did knowingly conspire and agree to execute, and to 

25 attempt to execute, a scheme and artifice to defraud a health care benefit prograin affecting conm1ei·ce, 

26 as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 24(b), namely, Medicare, all in com1ection with the 

27 delivery of and payme11t fur health care benefits, items, and sel'Vices, in violation of Title 18, United 

28 States Code, Section 1347. 

SUPERSEDING IND!CTMBNT 9 
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1 All i11 violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349. 

2 

3 i;;Qllh!T§ FQRTY-TWQ THROUGH FORTY-SEVEij_: (18 U.S.C. § 1347 - Health Care Fraud) 

4 24. The allegations of Paragraphs l through 23 of this Superseding Indictment are re-alleged 

5 and Incorporated herein as If set forth fully here. 

6 25. On or about the dates set forth below, in the Northern District of California, the defendant 

7 DAVID LAGUE 

8 did knowingly and intentionally execute and attempt tu execute a scheme and artifice to defraud a health 

9 care benefit program affecting commerce, as d~fmed in Title 18, United States Code, Section 24(b), 

1 O namely, Medicare, all in connection with the delivery of and payment for health = benefits, items, 1111d 

11 services, and did for the purpose of executing and attempting to execute said fraudulent scheme, 

12 knowingly and willfully submit and cause to be submitted to Medicare, and to be paid by Medicare, the 

13 following false and .fraudulent claims: 

~,, .............. -- ---14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

COUN'f SERVIICE DA'.['E C0Nl'.)10LLED .. AMOUNT' 
S(JBSTANCE .. PAID . " . 

·-
42 3/2/2015 Fe11ta:nyl (1600 mcg) $12,.808.49 

-· -
43 5/112015 Fentllnyl ( 400 mcg) $29,929.83 

"' --
44 S/S/2015 Fentanyl (800 mcg) $6,412.30 

·-· -- -
45 512812015 Fentanyl (400 mcg) $29,929.83 --·· " 

46 1nr2016 Fenl!lllyl (800 mcg) $14,224.85 
'-- '" "' 

47 1/14/2016 Fentanyl (SOO mcg) $12,171.81 
·-~ ·-

23 Each in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1347. 

24 

25 FORFEITURE ALLEGATIQNS: 

26 

(18 U.S.C. §§ 981(a)(l)(C), 982(a1{7); 21 U.S.C. § 85:1; and 28 
U.S.C. § 246l(c)-C1'irninal Forfe111ire) 

27 26. The factual allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 25 are re-alleged and fully 

28 incorporated as if set forth here, for the pul'pose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to Title 18, United States 

SUl'l.lll.SEDING INDIC'fMBNT 10 
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1 Code, Sections 981(a)(l)(C) and 982(a)(7), Title :u, United States Code, Section 853, and Title 28, 

2 United States Code, Section 246l(c) • 

. 3 27. Upon conviction for any of the Qffenses alleged in Counts One through Forty, the 

4 defendant 

s DAVID LAGUE 

6 shall forfeit to the United States, p1l!'suant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853, any property 

? constituting, or derived from, any proceeds that defendant obtained, directly or indirectly, as the result of 

8 such violations, and any prt>perty used or intended to be used, in lll1Y manner or part, to commit 01· to 

9 facil!tllte the commlss.ion of such violations, lncluding but not limited to his license to pmctice as a 

10 physician's assistant in California (License No. PA16903). 

11 28. Upon a convi-Otion of any of the offenses alleged in Counts f'orty-011e through Forty-

12 Seven, the.defendant 

13 DAVID LAGUE 

14 shall forfeit to the United States, pursu!lllt to Title 18, Unlte<l States Code, Sections 981(a)(l)(C) and 

IS 9112(a)(7}, and Title 28, Uuited States Code, Section 246l(c), all property, real or personal, that 

16 constitutes or is derived, directly or indirectly, fron1 gross .proceeds traceable to the commission of tlw 

17 offense, including but not limited to a sum of money equal to the gross proceeds obtained as a result of 

! 8 the offense. 

19 29 .. If 11ny o<fthe property, as a result of any act or omission ofthe defendant(s): 

20 a. cannot be located upon the e11:0rcise of due diligence; 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

b. 

o. 

d. 

e. 

has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a thfrd party; 

has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court; 

has been substantially climinillhed in vab.te; or 

hru; been commingled with other property which cannot be divided without 

difficulty, 

26 tl1e United States of America shall be entitled to foriilitute of substitute property pursuant to Title 21, 

27 United States Code, Section 8S3(p), as incorporated by Title 13, United States Code, Section 982(b)(l). 

28 All in violation ofT'itle 18, United States Code, Secti.0112 982(a)(7) and 982(a)(7}; Title 21, 

SUPERSEDING lNDtCTMENT 11 
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l United States Code, Section 853.; and Title 28, United States Code, Section 246l(c); and Rule 32.2 of' 

2 the Federal Rules of Criminal .Procedure. 

3 

4 DATED: December 5, 2017 

5 

6 

7 
BRIAN J. STRETCH 

8 United States Attorney 

9 

10 FRANK.RLEBLI 
De1:mty Chief, OCDETF Section 

A TRUE BILL. 

c:/'" 
FOREPEI~ 

11 /~..c"'2~ 
12 (Approved as to form: =~~-=o=7··-=-~-,-----~) 

AUSA RITA F. LIN 
13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

SUPERSEDINd INDICTMl>NT 12 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICTCOURTf'" i LE 0 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA ~~._\; :) :: .W1 J 

.: · ·~~:ql,i Y. SOONG 
CRIMINAL COVER SHEET cc:'.<~!: ~."'1''!-;_''cr co~~ 

NORI"'"""'""""'"' OF-GA•<~ 
In;tructitms: Eff•~tiw November 1, 20l 6, thlv Criminal Cover Sh.&t must be completed and "11bmi11el:'!f), 
along wilh the Defendant li1/ormatio11 Form, for each new crlmlnol c<1se. 

CASE NAME: 

USA v. David Lague 

Is This Case Uudcr Seal'/ 

Totnl Number ofDofclidants: 

Dues this case luvolve ONLY clla!'gcs 
under 8 U.S.C. § 1325 and/or 1326? 

Venne (Per Crim. L.n. 18·.l): 

fo th.fa a potential lligh-cost cnset 

.ls any def'cndnllt chni·ged witlt 
n denth-peunlty-cliglble r,rime? 

Is tills a !UCO Act gang cnse? 

Assigned AUSA . , 
(Lend Attorney): Rita Lm 

fonn CJ\Nl).CRIM-COVJ:lR (Rev. 11116) 

Yes 

1 ./ 

Yes 

SF 

Yes 

Yes 

y.,. 

CASI( NUllmm: 

CR 17-00150 HSG 

No ./ 

J.-7 8 or 1nore 

No ./ 

OAK ./ S.I 

No ./ 

No ./ 

No ./ 

Dote Submitted: 12/5/2017 

RESHT FORM ' SA VE PDI' 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 llj 13 8. 
.tl a 14 
~'ti 
~i 15 

~ i5 16 rll 

'E ·~ 17 
·a~ 
::J z 18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

2'~ 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Case 4:17-cr-00150-HSG Document 145 Filed 07/24/18 Page 1of8 

USA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

FILED 
JUL 24 t010 

SUSAN V. SOONG 

0 
~U!llK, U.S. OIBTRICT 00.U !!I.,IA 

N RIHERll OISTR!GT OF eAIJfvn• 

UNITED STATES OlSTIUCT COURT 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

Case No.17·cr·00150-HSG-l 

VERDICT FORM 

DAVID LAGUB, 

Defe11dant. -----·--_;_ __ _ 
We, the Jury in the above-captioned case, present the following unanimous verdict: 
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btientS.L\ 

I. Has the goverrunent proven the defendant gutity beyond a reasonable doubt of 

distributing the controlled aubstanoes listed below to patient S.l,., 011 the dates listed below, in 

violation of21 U.S.C. § 841 (a)(l ), as Charged in the Second Superseding lndictrnent? 

Count 
1 

2 

Go to the next page. 

Date 
10/13/16 

12112/16 

Guilty I Not Gulliy 
Contl'otled Substance _.,.....,.,.,..._1(eirele on.i) 

o::cycodone GUILTY I NOT GUILTY 

o::cycodone GUILTY I NOT GUlLTY 
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1 l'11tient P1Li 
2 2. Has the government prov.en the defendant guilty beyond a reasonable doubt of 

3 distributing the controlled substances listed below to patientD.L., on the dat.es !fated below, in 

4 violation oJ21 U.S.C. § 84 l (a)(l ), as charged in the Second Superseding lndiotment? 

5 Count Date Controlled Substance 
Guilty I Not Guilty 

(eµ-cle one) 

6 3 116/15 oxycodone GU1LTY I NOTGUil.TY 

7 10 116115 o:icymorphone GUILTY I NOT GUILTY· 

8 13 l/6/15 methadone GUILTY I NOTGUll.TY 

9 21 116/15 a.mphetmnine C~Jb I NOT GUILTY 

10 4 10/25/16 oxycodone GUILTY I NOTGUir:fY 

11 II 10/25/16 Ol!ymo1pho11e GUII,TY f NOTGUil.TY 

12 14 10/25116 methadone ~ [ NOT GUILTY 
ti·~ 

13 22 10/25/16 amphetamine I NOT GUILTY 8 !iZ1 
\'S 'OJ 

14 5 11129/16 oxycodone I NOT GUILTY '.filu . '!) 
;:s '\:) 15 12 11129/16 Ol!ymorphoue ! NOT GUILTY 

j~ 16 15 11129/16 methadone I NOT GUILTY Cl 

~ fl 17 23 11/29/16 amphetamine GUILTY I NOT GUILTY 
~t ~ 

z 18 24 10/6/16 Clonazepam ~LTY. I NOT GUILTY 

19 

20 Go lo the next page. 

21 

22 

23 

7.4 

25 

26 

2? 

28 
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l'atie)lt K.01 

3. Has tl1e government proven the defendant guilty beyond a reasonable doubt of 

distributing the controlled substances listed below to patient K.O., on the da.tes listed below, fa 

violation of21 U.S.C. § 841 (a)(l), as charged in the Second Superseding Indictment? 

G11ilty I Not Guilty 
Count Date Controlled S.ubstance (cb-cle one) 

6 6/18/15 <>xycodone ~ I NOT GUILTY 

37 6118/15 ' .-::::--~ . . 
hydrocodone ( GUILT'( I NOT GUlLTY 

7 9!19116 oxycodone ~I NOTGUlLTY 

20 9/19/16 methadone C OUIL""f'Y) I NOTGUlLTY 

38 9/19/16 hydrooodone I NOTOUILTY 

39 9119116 ulprazolam I NOT GUILTY 

40 9119116 cm'isoprodol OUU.T'i I NOT GUILTY 

· Go to the next page. 
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;J!atill!lt J.F1 

4. Has the government proven the defendl!llt guilty beyond a reasonable doubl of 

distributing the controlled substances listed below to pattentJ.F., on the dates listed oolow, in 

violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841 (a)(l ), as charged in the Second Superseding lndictment7 

Count Date Cont.rolled Substance 
. Guilty I Not Guilty 
. (circle one) 

8 12118/14 oxycodone GQ[.TY I NOT GUILTY 

9 1211115 oxycodone GUILTY I NOT GUILTY· 

Go to the next page. 

5 
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1 f!!JJent M;.~,M. 

2 5. Has the government prove11 tile de:fendaut guilty beyond a reasonable doubt of 

3 disll'ibuting the controlled substances li.sted below t() patient M.C.M., on the dates listed below, in 

4 violation of21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1), llS charged in the Second Superseding Judicttnent? 

5 Count Date Controlled Snbsta11ee 
Guilty I Not Guilty 
. (clrele one) 

6 25 2/23/15 fentanyl GUILTY I NOT GUILTY 

7 17 312115 methadone GUILTY· I NOT GUILTY 

8 31 3/2115 hydromorphone GUILTY I NOT GUILTY 

9 34 3/2/15 morphine GUILTY I NOT GUILTY· 

10 26 5/1115 fentanyl. c:::?U1~fi) I NOTOUILTY 

11 18 518115 methadone <::au1prv~ / NOTGUIL1Y 

., 12 
a'§ 

13 0 "" 
C) "-
tt el 14 ·g .... 
Ai 15 

~·- 16 

~i ~ ·.· 17 

18 z 

27 5/8115 fentat1yl ~I NOT GUIL 1"Y · 

32 518115 hydromarphone GUILTY I NOT GUILTY 

35 518115 morphine GUILTY I NOT GUILTY 

28 5/26/15 fe11tanyl c::::GlliL!?) { NOT GUILTY 

29 117/16 fe11tanyl ~I NOT GUILTY 
__ .. "'"?a~ 

30 117/16 fentanyl CGUILTY) I NOT GUILTY 

19 118/16 methadone ~I NOT GUILTY 

19 33 1/8/16 hydromorphone CGUILTY ::>I NOT GUil. TY · 

20 36 li8/!6 morphine <-~ NOT GUILTY 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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6. Has the goveminent proven the defendant guilty beyond a reasonable doubt of 

conspil'acy to commit health cw:e fraud, in violation of 18 U.8.C. § 1349, as charged in Count 

Fo1ty-One of the Second Superseding Indfotment? 

GUILTY (circle one) 

Go to the next page. 
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7. Has the government proven the defendant guilty beyond a reasonable doubt of 

health care fraud, in violation of 18 US.C. § 1347, on the dates listed below, as charged in Counts 

Forty-Two through Forty-Seven of the Second Superseding Indictment? 

Count Date Controlled Substanee 
Guilty !Not Guilty 

(cfrele one 
42 3/2/15 funtanyl GUILTY I NOT GUILTY 

43 511115 fentanyl OUJLTY /, NOT GUILTY 

44 518115 fentanyl GUILTY I NOT GUILTY 

45 5128115 fentanyl. GUILTY L°NOTOUILTY 

46 1/7/16 fentanyl GUILTY 

47 1/14/16 fentanyl GUILTY <{_, NOT GUILTY -

Jury Foreperson 

8 




